
 AGENDA 

ANIMAL SERVICES/PROPERTY STANDARDS  

APPEAL MEETING 
April 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, Town Hall 

   
Online Agenda:  Anything in blue denotes an attachment/link. By clicking the links on the agenda   

page, you can jump directly to that section of the agenda. To maneuver back to 
the agenda page use the Ctrl + Home keys simultaneously OR use the 
“Bookmark” icon on the navigation panel to the left of your screen. 

 

Alternative formats available upon request by contacting:  
sarah.moore@ajax.ca or 905-619-2529 ext. 3347 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of Minutes 

  3.1 February 11, 2016………………………………………………………..…Page 2 

3. Public Meeting Appeals 

4.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee 

4.1.1 Lang Appeal – 92 Church St. S. Unit 406…….……………...Page 18 

4.1.2 Curran Appeal – 2914 Beachview St……….………………...Page 38 

4.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

4.2.1     Rashid Appeal – 61 Wilce Dr………………………..…….......Page 52 

4. Verbal Update 

5.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee 

5.1.1 Richards Appeal – 4 Leach Dr. 

  5.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

5.2.1 2330829 Ontario Inc. Appeal – 252 Hunt St. 

5. Other / New Business 

6. Adjournment 

 

mailto:sarah.moore@ajax.ca


MINUTES OF THE 

ANIMAL SERVICES/PROPERTY STANDARDS APPEAL COMMITTEE 

MEETING HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, AJAX TOWN HALL 

At 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 11, 2016 
 

 

Present:       Members                                                             - K. Barrett 

- A. Bridgeman 

- D. Jean 

- O. Lambert 

                                                                                                                            

  Staff      - K. Little, Secretary  

        - D. Hannan, Staff Resource  

        - J. Lang, MLEO 

        - T. Abott, MLEO 

 

   

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Chair Lambert called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. and asked that everyone turn 

their cell phones off. 

 

2. Appointment of Chair 

 

Moved by:   Member Bridgeman 

 

That Kamele Barrett be appointed the Chair for the 2016 Property Standards/Animal 

Services Appeal Committee meetings. 

 

All in favour. 

 

          Carried. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Ms. Kim Richards and Mr. Karmash were in the Council 

Chambers. They indicated that they were.  She then explained the process of the 

meeting, the order of evidence being given and that the Committee will make a 

decision at the end of the proceedings.  She explained that Ms. Richards could appeal 

the decision to the General Government Committee and that Mr. Karmash could 

appeal his decision to the Superior Court of Ontario, if they do not agree with 

tonight’s outcome. 

 

 

 

2



 

 

 

3. Adoption of Minutes 

 

Moved by: Member Lambert 

 

That the Minutes of the Property Standards Appeal Committee held on September 10, 

2015, be adopted. 

 

 

         Carried. 

 

4. Public Meeting Appeals 

 

4.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee 

 

Richards Appeal – 4 Leach Drive 

 

Chair Barrett asked all parties to the animal appeal to come up to the front.  She 

explained that Ms. Richards could either stand at the podium or sit down until it 

was her turn to speak.  She then asked Officer Lang to give his testimony. 

 

Officer Lang explained that he had received a report of a dog bite incident 

involving two dogs on Leach Drive that had occurred on January 12, 2016.  He 

explained that Sarah Westlake-Casey was outside her home with her Jack Russell 

named Chloe and as she was searching for her leash that had been covered with 

snow, Chloe ran across the street to see another dog.  Ms. Westlake-Casey told 

Officer Lang that her dog did not show any aggression or want to attack the other 

dog, she just wanted to say hello to it.  He explained that the other dog, a 

Bullmastiff type dog named Kuma, was being walked by a dog walker and not the 

dog owner.  Officer Lang asked that the Committee look at the pictures in their 

agenda packages of the wounds that Chloe sustained when the Bullmastiff 

grabbed Chloe in its mouth and shook her around. He explained what they were 

seeing in each picture and told them that the picture of Chloe with a yellow 

bandage around her foot was due to an IV that had been inserted and not a wound 

from a bite.  Officer Lang explained that originally he had been told by Ms. 

Westlake-Casey that the vet costs were around $800, and as of today’s meeting 

they were closer to $1,000.00.  He said that the vet also gave some free treatments 

to Chloe, saving the complainant some money.  Officer Lang explained that he 

spoke to Ms. Richards on January 14, 2016 who acknowledged that Kuma was 

her dog.  He also asked Ms. Richards for the dog walker’s information so he 

could get her version of what happened on the day in question, but Ms. Richards 

did not agree to provide it to Officer Lang.  Officer Lang explained to the 

3



Committee that due to the serious nature of the bite from Kuma to Chloe, he felt 

that an Order to Restrain with a muzzle requirement was appropriate for public 

safety.  He acknowledged that Ms. Westlake-Casey’s Jack Russell was off leash 

at the time of the bite, and she does take responsibility for this, but every dog 

owner needs to not let their dogs bite other dogs or people.  

 

 

Officer Lang then outlined the conditions of the Order to the Committee.  He 

explained that Item #1 has been complied with, as Ms. Richards had purchased a 

2016 dog licence on January 20, 2016.  Item #2 ensures that the dog must be 

restrained on a chain while the dog is on the property of the owner and must be 

muzzled using a humane muzzling device to prevent biting, or, in the alternative, 

the dog could be kept in a secured and fenced yard with a gate that has a self-

closing and self-latching device on it.  Item # 3 ensures when the dog is off the 

property of its owner, it shall be on a leash of no more than 1.8 meters in length 

and also wear a muzzle.  Item #4 requires that the dog must be under the control 

of a person of at least 18 years of age while the dog is being walked and Item #5 

requires the dog owner to notify the Town of Ajax Animal Services if the dog is 

sold or relocated to another address. 

 

Officer Lang told the Committee that he had received Ms. Richard’s appeal letter 

and was concerned that she would not have the dog wear a muzzle.  He also was 

concerned that in the backyard the gate must be secured with a self-closing/self-

latching device and that Ms. Richards said she had a hard time trying to find a 

muzzle to fit Kuma and did not want to incur costs for the correct latch on the 

fence. 

 

Chair Barrett asked the Committee if there were any questions for Officer Lang. 

 

Member Lambert asked Officer Lang if he saw the Bullmastiff when he visited 

Ms. Richards at her home.  He told the Committee that he did not see it when he 

was at her property and has not gone back since. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Ms. Richards had any questions for Officer Lang and she 

said she did not.  She then asked Ms. Sarah Westlake-Casey if she would like to 

speak about the incident. 

 

Sarah told the Committee that Officer Lang described what happened on the day 

of the incident and acknowledged that she should have had her dog on a leash and 

that she takes full blame for it.  She was afraid that something would happen if 

her dog got too close to Kuma or if one of her kids did. She also told the 

Committee that her dog Chloe had to have a second surgery to remove infection 

and went every other day to the vet with the dog.  She doesn’t want something 

like this to happen to another animal.  She didn’t hear the dog walker say that the 

4



bullmastiff was not good with other animals. 

 

Ms. Richards approached the Committee with a package of materials and Chair 

Barrett asked her what she had to give them.  Ms. Richards explained that it was 

information about Jack Russells and Bullmastiffs, pictures, and copies of notes. 

 

Member Lambert asked if the information was pertinent to her dog or just general 

information.  Staff Resource, D. Hannan, explained that they were both, including 

copies of text messages between Ms. Richards and Ms. Westlake-Casey. 

 

Member Jean made a Motion to accept the materials on behalf of the Committee. 

Chair Barrett asked for a 5 minute recess at 7:30 p.m. to make some copies of the 

information and for the Committee to read them over.   

 

The meeting resumed at 7:35 p.m. and Chair Barrett asked Ms. Richards to 

approach the podium. 

 

Ms. Richards explained that her dog walker, Becky, was here tonight and that she 

was also a vet technician.  She explained that Kuma is leashed at all times and has 

been walked in Ajax well over 2,000 times with no issues.  The Jack Russell was 

the one that was running at large.  She recited sections of the Dog and Cat By-

law, explaining that her dog was on a leash at the time of the incident and the Jack 

Russell was not.  She wondered why Officer Lang issued her an Order to Restrain 

and not fine the owner of the Jack Russell for having her dog at large.  He told 

Ms. Richards that Ms. Westlake-Casey’s dog had suffered enough trauma with 

the dog bite.  She talked about the fines available in the Dog and Cat By-law and 

told the Committee that it all could have been prevented if the Jack Russell had 

been on a leash.  She told the Committee that Officer Lang had said she refused to 

give him the dog walker’s information.  She said that was incorrect and that she 

had told Officer Lang she would take his information and give it to the dog 

walker or she could have the dog walker call Officer Lang directly.  She asked 

him at the end of the conversation if she wanted her dog walker to call him and he 

said that it was not necessary.  She told the Committee that the Jack Russell ran 

across the street and that her dog felt threatened.  Her dog is a gentle giant who 

thinks she’s a lap dog.  She explained to the Committee that a Bullmastiff is like a 

little dog in a big dog body and the Jack Russell is like a big dog in a small dog’s 

body.  The seriousness of the injury was due to the 100 pound weight difference 

between the two dogs.  She said that the owner of the Jack Russell was shoveling 

the snow off her driveway at the time of the incident and had her dog outside with 

her.  In her text messages to Ms. Richards, the owner of the Jack Russell said that 

she took most of the blame for what happened.  She also talked to her the next day 

and both agreed that it was out of the ordinary for both dogs and that she usually 

leashes her dog.  Ms. Richards stated that Sarah did not did not move her dog 

away or keep some distance between them  The dog walker shortened the leash 

5



and pulled the dog’s collar way up on Kuma when Chloe ran over to her. Ms. 

Richards provided an analogy to the Committee of a large pick up truck going 

through a green light and a smart car running the red light and hitting the pick up.  

If the driver of the smart car had followed the law, it would not have caused an 

accident.  She explained that Item #1 of the Order to Restrain has been fulfilled 

and that her dog’s shots are all up to date.  Ms. Richards believes the Order is not 

fair due to her complying with the Bylaw and walking her dog on a leash.  It is 

sad that no one can pet her dog with the muzzle on.  She believes that Sarah 

should not have had her dog off leash and sorry for the serious injuries that were 

caused.  She wants the entire Order to be dismissed. 

 

Chair Barrett confirmed with Ms. Richards that she wants the entire Order to be 

dismissed, when she has complied with some of the items on it.  Which ones is 

she still appealing?  Ms. Richards stated again that the whole Order should be 

dismissed.  Chair Barrett asked who walks the dog and she explained that Becky, 

her dog walker does.  She then introduced Becky Anderson who has been a vet 

technician for 17 years and has had her own dog walking business for the last 8 

years. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if the Town had any questions and there were none.   

 

She then asked if the Committee had any questions. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked Ms. Richards about her statement that she felt her dog 

had felt threatened on the day of the incident and asked her to explain what this 

meant.  She told the Committee that her dog is skittish and startles easily.  

Member Bridgeman asked what the dog’s general reaction is if she gets startled, 

and Ms. Richards explained that if it is her that startles the dog, she is fine.  If 

another dog runs up to her, she will react in a different manner. 

 

Member Lambert confirmed with Ms. Richards that she was not present at the 

time of the incident and asked if it was Becky who was the dog walker that day 

and she said yes. 

 

Member Jean asked Ms. Richards if she had purchased a muzzle for Kuma yet 

and she explained that it was very hard to find one, but that she had one now. 

 

Ms. Becky Anderson said that a dog running up to another dog’s face is not the 

right behavior. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked if either dog was barking on the day of the incident and 

Becky said no. She said when Chloe ran over, she stopped and shortened the leash 

and pulled Kuma’s collar up high.  She told the Committee that the Bullmastiff is 

not dog friendly.  She believes that Sarah didn’t hear her say this.  Member 

6



Bridgeman asked Becky what she meant by saying the dog was not dog friendly, 

and she explained that they don’t greet other dogs on their walks. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if there had been any other incidents before this one and Ms. 

Anderson explained that there has never been any dog biting.  They don’t go near 

dogs on their walks. 

 

Member Lambert confirmed that Ms. Anderson said that the Jack Russell ran into 

Kuma’s face and Becky stated that she can’t control another dog’s behavior, only 

her own dog’s.  She explained that Kuma bit Chloe and started shaking her.  

Kuma then dropped the Jack Russell on her own.  Ms. Anderson also pulled up on 

Kuma’s leash. 

 

Officer Lang asked questions of Becky Anderson.  He confirmed with her that 

when Chloe ran across the street that there was no barking between the dogs.  

There were also no signs of aggression between both dogs, no snarling or teeth 

showing.  He confirmed that Ms. Anderson said that Chloe was a couple of inches 

away from Kuma’s chest.  He asked her if Chloe was sniffing the other dog?  She 

replied that she didn’t know. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Lang to summarize the Town’s position. Officer Lang 

stated that Chloe ran from her property and Sarah has taken full responsibility for 

this.  She believed Chloe was just going to greet another animal.  He believed that 

there was no reason for Kuma to bite Chloe.  When Ms. Richards used the 

analogy of the car accident, he believes it was not relevant to what happened.  

This was not a matter of self defense.  If another dog was walking by on a 

retractable leash or a small child walked by, would it happen again?  He doesn’t 

know, but it is a possibility.  He did not issue any fines or charges against Sarah, 

as he has discretion as an officer investigating issues.  He also did not charge 

Sarah or Kim.  He believes that Sarah has paid her dues with the cost of the vet 

bills.  It is a $200 fine for having a dog at large and he would have had to charge 

Sarah five times to make up for the cost of the vet treatment.  He believes Kuma 

to be a substantial safety risk and that wearing a muzzle is not a substantial 

burden.  He explained that you always want to ensure a dog’s comfort, and you 

just need to find the right muzzle that doesn’t restrict movement, but prevents 

biting.  He couldn’t see any reasonable explanation for the bite.  He told the 

Committee that the self defence issue raised by Kim Richards was not 

appropriate. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Ms. Richards to summarize her position. Ms. Richards stated 

that she believes the muzzle is a burden and that Kuma can’t pant properly due to 

her large nose being pushed up against the muzzle and she can’t be socialized.  

She has never had issues in the past with Kuma.   Her dog is wonderful with 

people and children, just not overly fond of 4 leggeds, as she thinks they are a 

7



squirrel.  She is no threat to the public and if another animal comes by them on 

their walks, they will walk to the other side of the street and keep their own 

distance.  She has had no issues in 6.5 years.  She believes it is unfair to penalize 

Kuma due to her size and was just following the law. 

 

The Committee then went into deliberations. 

 

Member Lambert stated that she was not looking at the size of the dog, just 

concerned about the bite.   She stated that both dogs were not showing aggression 

or teasing each other, so she is just looking at the bite itself. 

 

Member Bridgeman also stated that it was not about the size of the dog and that 

the incident was unfortunate.  The other dog was off leash and Chloe’s owner has 

taken responsibility for this.  Section 4 of the Dog and Cat By-law states that a 

dog owner shall not allow a dog to bite.  It is a large, 130 pound dog.  Children 

under 8 would be “dwarfed” by this dog. She asked Officer Lang why he did not 

require “Beware of Dog” signs at the house. He replied that if the issue had 

happened on the property or if a dog runs from the property, then he would 

require signs.  Signs are not necessary when it happens out in public. 

 

Member Jean had a question about muzzles.  He has seen some that are cage 

types.  He asked if bands over the nose are ok?  Officer Lang explained that these 

are considered a “gentle leader”.  There are nylon muzzles that are used in a 

clinic/animal control issue.  If the straps are thin, this is not a muzzle, just a 

leader.  If a dog gets startled with no aggression, Officer Lang is worried what can 

happen. The situation was very unfortunate and it needs to be prevented. 

 

Member Lambert asked when someone gets a muzzle requirement with their 

Order to Restrain, what is the length of time it has to be worn.  Officer Lang 

explained that it is a lifetime requirement. 

 

Chair Barrett shares the same concerns.  She confirmed  that the dog reacts in a 

negative manner.  Could potentially have same reaction to another dog/human.  

She suggested that the Order should be upheld.  Should the Committee discuss 

each section of the Order? 

 

Member Bridgeman believes that the Order should stand as is, but willing to listen 

to the other members. 

 

Member Lambert confirmed that Item #1 of the Order is in compliance, as are 

Items 4 and 5.  She supports Member Bridgeman. 

 

Member Bridgeman put forward a Motion to uphold the Order in its entirety. 

 
You shall: 

8



 
1. Licence the dog with the Town of Ajax as per the Town of Ajax Dog 

and Cat By-law.  You shall provide proof of such licensing to the 
Animal Services Section within 15 days of service of this Order. 
 
Keep the dog restrained on a chain of sufficient strength to prevent 
any further attack while the dog is on the property of its owner. The 
dog must be kept back a minimum distance of three (3) meters from 
any property line, and the dog must be muzzled using a humane 
muzzling device to prevent biting. 
 

OR 
 

2.In the alternative the dog shall be kept in a secured and fenced yard, 
which fence shall be of sufficient height and strength to adequately 
prevent the dog from escaping. In addition, where a gate forms a part of 
the fence, the gate shall have a self-closing and self-latching device, both 
of which shall be kept in good working order. All fences on private 
property must comply with the Town’s Zoning By-law and the Town’s 
Fence By-law. 
 
3. When the dog is off the property of its owner, the dog shall be on a 
leash of no more than 1.8 meters in length and of sufficient strength to 
prevent an attack. The dog shall also be muzzled using a humane 
muzzling device to prevent the dog from biting. 

 
4. Keep the dog under the full control of a person of at least eighteen 
years of age while the dog is away from the owner’s property. 

 
5. Notify the Town of Ajax, Animal Services, in the event the dog is sold 
or ownership of the dog is otherwise transferred to any other person, or 
the dog is relocated to any other address besides the address referred to 
in this Order, of the new owner’s name and address within 5 days. 

 

 

All in favour. 

 

         Carried. 

 

Chair Barrett explained to Ms. Richards the decision of the Committee to uphold 

the Order to Restrain  and that the decision would be mailed to her and she has the 

option to appeal it. 

 

This portion of the meeting was finished at 8:11 p.m. 

 

4.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

 

9



2330829 Ontario Inc. Appeal – 252 Hunt Street 

 

Chair Barrett confirmed that Officer Abott and Mr. Karmash were present. 

She then asked Officer Abott to provide her findings. 

 

Officer Abott explained that she was at 252 Hunt Street on December 22, 2015 

for a reinspection of another matter, when she noted certain violations under the 

Town’s Property Standards By-law on the property.   These included dump trucks 

parking, heavy vehicles, etc.  She explained that this property is located on a 

corner lot, where the front yard, east side of the property abuts Dowty Road, the 

side yard, south side abuts Hunt Street and the rear yard, west side abuts a 

neighbouring property.  She also told the Committee that there was an overview 

map in their agendas which showed the property in question.  She issued a 

Property Standards Order on January 8, 2016, requiring certain items to be 

complied with by February 8, 2016 and one item to be complied with by June 1, 

2016.  She told the Committee that in Section 8.1 of the Ajax Fence Bylaw, it  

states that if you want to make changes to a fence, you must first apply and 

receive approval of a site plan under the Planning Act. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked Officer Abott about the picture in the agenda package 

with the red truck in it.  Officer Abott replied that the issue in the picture was not 

the truck but the debris that was on the ground beside the truck. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mr. Karmash if he had any questions for Officer Abott.  He 

did not.  He explained that he has a problem with Items 1 and 2 of the Order, that 

3 and 4 are done, 5 will be done by June 1, 2016. 

 

Mr. Karmash’s concerns with item #1 of the Order is that there is an ongoing 

Court Order with regard to the property. Mr. Karmash stated that he has been told 

to cover items by plastic/chain link to not let people see in. He stated he bought 

the property years ago and it had a chain link fence. He claims that the Town 

ordered him to put up plastic lattice which cost him $4,000.  Mr. Karmash stated 

that the plastic lattice does not let the public see in.  He would remove it, but will 

be left with chain link and the public can see in.  He would be violating a court 

order. 

 

Mr. Karmash’s concerns with item #2 of the Order is that they only have use of 

70% of the backyard.  He explained that the school bus company uses 30% of his 

rear property for access to a different property. He stated that school buses go 

back and forth all day long across his property.  Mr. Karmash believes that it is 

not fair that the Town has asked him to fix it. He states that the mud and pot holes 

are caused by school buses.  Mr. Karmash thinks that if the Town wants the 

driveway fixed, then the Town should go to the neighbours to fix it. 

 

10



Member Bridgeman asked Officer Abott if there was a right of way on the 

property. Officer Abott replied that the Town has searched the title and have not 

found an easement or a right of way for access of vehicles across the appellants 

property. 

 

Mr. Karmash stated that he is confused. Does the Town want the rear property 

covered or not? Does the Town want plastic or not? 

 

Member Lambert asked Mr. Karmash what he was appealing.  He said #1 and 2 

only and that he had no problem with items 3,4, and 5. He stated that he would 

have the property cleaned up. 

 

Member Bridgeman wanted clarification on the court order.  Did it say plastic or 

specify 50% visibility.  Did it say cover it with wood fence or plastic.  Did it 

specify height such as a 1.8m chain link? Why does the plastic drape over the top 

of the fence. Mr. Karmash stated that the fence is what the Town agreed to in 

Court. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked Mr. Karmash if he knew of the right of way when the 

property was purchased. Mr. Karmash stated he did not know. Member 

Bridgeman asked if there had been any discussions as to who has to maintain the 

property with the owner of the bus company. Mr. Karmash stated no. Member 

Bridgeman asked Mr. Karmash if he was given an agreement from the previous 

owners, and he replied that he did not. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mr. Karmash whose 3 trucks are in the picture on page 38 of 

the agenda.  He said they belong to a construction company.  There are two leases 

on the property – one is a mechanic and the other one is the construction 

company.  Chair Barrett  asked if the construction company leases property from 

you?  Yes. Chair Barrett asked why the trucks were parking on grass and not in 

the parking lot.  Mr. Karmash advised that they were there on a temporary basis. 

Chair Barrett asked if Mr. Karmash is present at the property?  Yes, 2 to 3 times a 

week. Chair Barrett asked if Mr. Karmash has mentioned to the construction 

company not to park there?  Yes.  It will be rectified in June, 2016. 

 

Member Lambert confirmed with Mr. Karmash that the buses solely access the 

property one way, but where is the other entrance? 

 

Mr. Karmash showed in the overhead picture in the agenda how to access the 

property from the Hunt Street entrance into the parking lot. 

 

Chair Lambert asked if the Town had any questions.  They did not. 

 

Member Jean says there is an amendment to the By-law for a privacy screen.  It 

11



must be cut, trimmed and in neat order.  Officer Abott said there is no amendment 

to the By-law.  Officer Abott explained that the fencing around the appellant’s 

legal  outdoor storage in the rear yard of the property would allow the appellant to 

use plastic such as the web type or the full sheet. Member Jean asked if this was 

like a tennis court.  She said yes. 

 

Member Lambert would like to clarify.  Was it a consensus to use plastic webbing 

or sheets or would the appellant have to apply for a site plan amendment. Officer 

Abott stated that the Town’s Fence By-law states that wood, chain link, wrought 

iron, or any combination are the only options for fencing on industrial property 

without applying for a Site Plan Amendment. 

 

Member Jean asked Officer Abott if the owners were aware of this.  She stated 

they were. 

 

Mr. Karmash said the Court did not tell them to use a specific type of plastic.  Mr. 

Karmash said the By-law says wood or plastic, not chain link.  All nearby 

properties are chain link.  His is the only property on Hunt Street to put up plastic 

or chain link. 

 

Chair Barrett advised that they must conform to the By-law. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked if anyone had the court order here today. Officer Abott 

responded that there is no court order at the Hearing this evening.  

 

Mr. Karmash said the fence could only be wood or plastic, not chain link. 

 

D. Hannan, Staff Resource, raised a Point of Order stating that the Court Order 

only deals with the portion of the fence that contains outdoor storage in the rear 

yard of the property and that all other fences on the property must comply with 

the Town’s Fence By-law for Commercial and Industrial Zones. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked does that mean the 50% rule does not apply? D. 

Hannan, Staff Resource, replied that the 50% rule was a Zoning requirement only 

with regard to outdoor storage in a rear yard.  All other fencing on a property 

would have to conform to the Town’s Fence By-law. 

 

Mr. Karmash advised that he only had plastic in his rear yard.  If the Town asks 

him to remove it, he will remove it. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked Mr. Karmash of on the west side of his property, if all 

all 3 sides are considered to be the rear of the property and Mr. Karmash 

answered yes. 

 

12



Officer Abott had no questions for Mr. Karmash as he is in compliance with the 

majority of the Order, and only Items 1 and 2 are outstanding. 

 

Member Jean asked if the school buses only have the one way in and if they may 

have been negotiated with the previous owner? Officer Abott says there is another 

entrance off of MacKenzie Ave. Officer Abott stated that she found no easement 

or right of way on title and suggested that perhaps it was settled years ago as a 

“Gentleman’s Agreement” only. 

 

Member Jean asked if at Court was certain types of fence discussed and it was too 

bad that it was not put in writing. Officer Abott advised that plastic was a 

discussed option with regard to the enclosure in the rear yard covering the outdoor 

storage. 

 

Member Lambert asked how long has the lattice been put on? Officer Abott said 

the Court Order was issued on November 10, 2015 and the appellant had until 

December 10, 2015 to comply. The lattice had been placed on the fence during 

that period. 

 

Officer Abott said the debris was visible on the property from the 3 streets 

surrounding the property and that she agrees that items Two and Three on the 

Order have been dealt with and are now in compliance. Officer Abott stated that it 

was made clear to Mr. Karmash’s legal representative what would be acceptable 

to use as screening in the rear yard to cover the outdoor storage and that the 

remaining fencing on the property was not in compliance with other By-laws. 

 

Mr. Karmash said he will remove the lattice and live with the chain link fence. 

They thought lattice was acceptable.  He stated that they don’t use the driveway 

and will block it off from the school buses.  He stated if the school bus company 

wants to use it then they should have to maintain it.  He stated that he will block 

the entire area to keep the buses out and he will maintain it. 

 

Member Jean said that if there is no easement on title for the buses then it belongs 

to the property owner.  Member Jean stated to the appellant that if he wants the 

school buses to go through, get them to pay a fee. Member Jean stated that at this 

time the fence and driveway still were not in compliance with the Order. 

 

Member Bridgeman asked the Committee if they could deal with the outstanding 

issues one at a time.  Member Bridgeman stated that the owner is responsible for 

the property and must maintain it. 

 

Officer Abott said that the Region of Durham has a water easement on the 

property and it still has to be maintained, but nothing could be found with regard 

to a “right of way” or a “right of access” across the appellant’s property. 

13



 

Member Lambert told the appellant that they must maintain their own property 

and must deal with the school bus company, if he wants them to pay a fee. 

 

Chair Barrett stated that the tenants are also using the grass on the property to 

park and that the owner of the property must maintain the entire property. She 

believes that Item 2 of the Order should be upheld. 

 

Member Lambert stated that the plastic lattice is not in compliance with the 

Town’s Fence By-law. She questioned how can it be repaired? Member Lambert 

stated that there was a need to cover chain link for visibility. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if only the rear yard fence can have plastic on it. Officer Abott 

answered yes. She also stated that the chain link fence in the side yard of the 

property also has plastic lattice affixed to it. Chair Barrett asked if the chain link 

fence in the side yard of the property would comply with the visibility issue.  

Officer Abott answered yes. Chair Barrett asked if the lattice in the side yard can 

be removed and compliance achieved.  Officer Abott answered yes. 

 

Member Lambert stated only the rear yard can have the lattice but it would still 

have to comply with proper screening. 

 

Member Jean put forward a Motion that the Order should stand as is, as the 

Committee is only dealing with the Property Standards By-law issue. 

 

Member Bridgeman agrees that it is strictly a By-law issue. She also stated that it 

is unfortunate there is nothing in writing before the Committee with regard to the 

Court Order. 

 

Mr. Karmash stated that he was surprised that there was nothing in writing. He 

also stated that Officer Abott was not in Court. 

 

Member Lambert said that the court information would have been helpful but still 

the appellant needs to look after the rear yard. 

 

Chair Barrett stated if the side yard plastic fencing is removed then the debris 

would be visible. Chair Barrett stated that the appellant must comply with the 

Fence By-law or clean up the debris. 

 

Member Bridgeman stated that debris on the property is not permitted anywhere 

and that the rear yard needs to be fixed. 

 

Officer Abott says because the fence is in a commercial/industrial area, plastic 

lattice to screen is not appropriate to use except for outdoor storage. 

14



 

Member Lambert asked that the Committee uphold Member Jean’s Motion to 

uphold the Order. 

 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 
ITEM   PARTICULARS OF REPAIRS TO BE EFFECTED 
 
 

1. Remove the coloured plastic/vinyl type lattice that has been affixed to the chain link 

fence with zip ties. The lattice is not an approved material for non residential areas 

pursuant to Town of Ajax Fencing By-law. In addition, the lattice was not installed in 

a good workmanship like manner, the lattice panels drape over the top of the existing 

chain link fence and it is creating an unsightly appearance.* 

 

2. Repair area located on the southwest side of the property used for vehicular traffic, 

where the property abuts the neighbouring properties located to the west and to the 

south. The repairs must be completed so as to afford safe passage, be free of defects, 

and accident hazards. The area is to be evenly graded, with a smooth surface, free 

from deep ruts and pot holes and uneven sections with a surface covering of either 

compacted stone or gravel. All areas used for vehicular traffic are to be maintained in 

a good state of repair. 

 

3. Cease the practice of parking and/or storing of any motor vehicles on the grassed 

front yard, east of the building, where it abuts the asphalt parking lot, as parking 

and/or storing of motor vehicles is not permitted on grass.** 

 

4. Remove all discarded unusable items, and debris from the property, located in the 

front, side and rear yards,  including but not limited to: the white plastic buckets, 

wood, lumber, branches, discarded vegetation, metal, clear plastic, blue plastic, tarps, 

cardboard, food and beverage containers, and black plastic containers. The debris and 

waste materials must be disposed of legally and the property must be maintained in a 

good state of repair and not create an unsightly appearance. 

 

5. Repair the grassed front yard area, east of the building, where it abuts the asphalt 

parking lot. The area must be evenly graded, with a smooth surface, free from deep 

ruts with the approved surface covering of grass. The grassed front yard shall be 

maintained in good state of repair and not create an unsightly appearance. 

15



*Please note: In accordance, with the Town of Ajax Fencing By-law a permitted fence, in a non 
residential zone must be constructed of any of the following listed materials, or any combination 
of materials where applicable: chain link and galvanized steel wire, vertical board on board, or 
wrought iron.  
**Please note:  As this property is under Site Plan Control, no person is permitted to alter or 
change the approved Site Plan without first having applied for and receiving approval for a Site 
Plan Amendment. If you wish to gather further information on the Site Plan Amendment 
process please feel free to contact the Planning Services 905-683-4550, or by email at 
planningservices@ajax.ca. 

 

 

 All in favour. 

 

           Carried. 

 

5. Verbal Update 

 

5.1 Property Standards Committee 

 

Radix Appeal – Fearn Crescent 

 

D. Hannan, Staff Resource, told the Committee that the By-law Officer closely 

monitored the work of the contractor and that the home owner has carried out all 

of the work and has met the intent of what the Committee agreed to.  They will 

continue to monitor it. 

 

 

 

Frazer Heights Co-op – Hayward Lane 

 

They are now in compliance. 

 

Woods Appeal – Carwin Crescent 

 

They are now in compliance. 

 

6. Other/New Business 

 

N/A 

 

7. Adjournment 

 

Member Lambert made a Motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:02 p.m. 

 

 

16



_______________    

Chair  

 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76


	Minutes Feb.11.16
	Lang
	Curran Appeal Package
	61 Wilce Dr- PSO Appeal Package



